


Table of Contents
October 18, 2023

Agenda Item #IIL. ...ttt e s ere e e Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #IV..........c.coevnit Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of October 4, 2023
Agenda Item #V.....................Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of October 4, 2023

Agenda Item #VIL....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiri e e e General Manager / Staff Reports



Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #I11



e — —

a Board of Public Utilities

Kansas City, Kansas

BOARD AGENDA

Regular Session
October 18, 2023 — 6:00 P.M.

I. Call to Order
I1. Roll Call

_____Robert L. Milan, Sr., District 1

_____Rose Mulvany Henry, At Large, Position 3
_____Jeff Bryant, District 3

_____Mary L. Gonzales, At Large, Position 1
___Tom Groneman, District 2

_____David Haley, At Large, Position 2

I1I. Approval of Agenda

IV. Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of October 4, 2023
V. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of October 4, 2023
VL Public Comments

VIIL. General Manager / Staff Reports
1. HR Personnel Code — Resolution #5290

il. Utility Rebate Program Update
1. Miscellaneous Comments
VIII. Board Comments

IX. Adjourn



Approval of Minutes
Work Session 10-4-23
Agenda Item #IV



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Work Session on Wednesday, October 4, 2023 at 5:00 PM. The following Board Members
were present: Rose Mulvany Henry, President; Thomas Groneman, Vice President; Robert L.
Milan, Secretary; Mary Gonzales, Jeff Bryant and David Haley.

Also present: William Johnson, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Acting Chief
Counsel; Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer; Jerin Purtee,
Executive Director Electric Supply; Andrew Ferris, Director Financial Planning; Dennis
Dumovich, Director of Human Resources; Steve Nirschl, Director Water Processing;
Douglas Bowen, Director Electric Production Operations/Maintenance; and Robert Kamp, IT
Project Manager.

A video of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities and can be found on
the BPU website, www.bpu.com.

Ms. Mulvany Henry called the meeting to order at 5:02 PM.

"Roll call was taken. All Members were present, expect for Mr. Bryan and Mr. Haley,
who arrived in the room at 5:03 PM.

Item #3 —Approval of Agsenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda by Mr. Groneman, seconded by Ms.
Gonzales, and unanimously carried.

Item #4 —Board Update/GM Update

No comments were made.

Item #5 — Personnel Code Policy Review

Mr. Johnson advised the Personnel Code Policy was amended according to the
recommendations made by the Policy Review Committee at their last meeting. The next step
would be to move the policy to the full Board for approval. It was agreed the policy would be
brought before the Board at the next Regular Session Board Meeting. (See attached amended

policy.)

Page1o0f2



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2023
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

Item #6 — 2024 Fuel and Purchase Power Plan

Mr. Andrew Ferris, Director Financial Planning, presented the 2024 Fuel and Purchase
Power Budget Forecast. He explained how data is collected and analyzed for financial planning
as well as load projections for the upcoming year. (See attached PowerPoint.)

Mr. Ferris, Mr. Johnson and Ms. Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief
Administrative Officer, responded to questions and comments made by the Board.

Item #7 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the Work Session at 5:55 PM by Mr. Groneman,
seconded by Mr. Bryant and unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 2 of 2






Table of Contents

INIOAUCTION ..ottt ettt e et s st s et eeereseeeensenens 3
WeElcome 10 BPU! ...ttt ettt eee s eneees 4
I.  General Manager AUthority.......ccccooeeeeiivnivcrninninnnn, TR PO USSR RO 5
EmMPIoyee at Will......ociiiiiiiiciie ettt ettt 5
EmPloyee REIAtIONS ......c.ooviiiieiiiiieireirteteteet ettt et eeeee e enenn 5
DiSCIPINE PTOGIAML ....ocviiiiiiiiieiecet sttt ettt ettt eee ettt ee e eeene 5
Management ReSponsibilities .........coceoiririirieiriiiieiececceeeee e 6
II. Establish Employment Policies, Practices and Procedures.............ccouoeeveeeemeeeieeeereeeeenenn. 7
III.  Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) ........cooiiuiiiiieiieeeceeeeeeeee e 8
Individual With DiSabilItIEs.....cccocviieiriiriiiiiciiieecet et 8
Harassment/DiSCIImMINAtION .....c.c..eoiiiiieirieireirieisieec ettt ettt e eene e eees e eeenean 8
TV . RESIAEIICY ...etiiiieceieee ettt et et ettt e e e et e e e e ene e ee et eeneseeeeeeas 10
V. Collective Bargaining — RECOZNIHOMN. .......c.ocvivivieiieieieiceiecieeee e 12
Physical Bargaining UnNIt........c.cociiiiiiiiiiieieisee ettt e 12
Clerical Bargaining UINt........cccccoviiiriiririoriiiiiiiieeeeeteet oottt es et eeaeeo 12
Employee CatEOTIES ......ccuiiriiieiiieiriiiciene ettt ettt s st ee e 12
Bargaining Units and Non-Bargaining EMPIOYEES ...........ccoeieiivvirieneiriiiee e 13
VI HOIAAYS ...ttt ettt ettt et es e eee e see e e et eseaeeeeneeas 14
VII. Employees Addressing the Board Regarding Employment Related Matters.......................... 15



Introduction

This Personnel Code of the Kansas City Board of Public Utilities, commonly referred to as
"the BPU," has been adopted by the Board pursuant to various Charter Ordinances. All
BPU employees are covered by the Personnel Code. In the event that an employee is
covered by a bargaining agreement, and the provisions of that agreement conflict with this
Personnel Code, then the bargaining agreement shall control.

The Board of Directors of the BPU is responsible for the approval of the Personnel Code
under the guidelines of the Charter Ordinance.












I1.Establish Employment Policies, Practices and Procedures

The General Manager is directed to adopt an Employee Handbook a:i amend as needed, that is
consistent with this Personnel Code and govems the day to day activities of employment at the BPU.
The Employee Handbook will provide additional provisions in detail to be consistent with the
Personnel Code as amended.






disability (mental or physical), citizenship status, marital status, age or military or veteran
status and any other legally protected status should immediately report such incidents to
his/her supervisor, the Human Resources Division, or to the General Manager without fear
of reprisal.

The BPU will make every effort to maintain confidentiality to the extent possible in
conducting a thorough and effective investigation. An investigation will be made and
appropriate action taken to address the investigative findings.

The BPU strictly prohibits retaliation against an individual for making a complaint or
notifying the BPU of conduct prohibited by this policy, testifying as a witness at a hearing
or otherwise assisting in an investigation of any complaint made pursuant to this policy.

We also realize that intentional false accusations or harassment can have serious effects on
innocent employees. Thus, false accusations may also result in disciplinary action.



|

IV.Residency

The BPU board declares that all employees must establish and maintain their legal primary
residence within the legal boundaries of the Unified Government of Wyandotte
County/Kansas City, Kansas. The Board's objectives in adopting a residency requirement
are to promote the interest and loyalty of BPU employees within the BPU's service area, to
improve the relations between BPU employees and the residents of the Unified Government
and the Unified Government Board of Commissioners, to enhance the quality of BPU's
employees' performance by encouraging greater personal knowledge of the BPU's service
area and by fostering a greater personal connection between BPU employees and the BPU
in terms of the BPU's growth, rates and competitive edge, to diminish absenteeism and
tardiness, to promote readily trained personnel in emergency situations, to help the general
economic conditions of the local economy by increasing local spending of employees'
wages and salaries, to help diminish the population decline of the county, and to help
increase the local tax base while adding to the number of BPU customers.

Pursuant to the BPU's residency requirement, all BPU employees shall establish and
maintain their legal primary residence within the legally defined boundaries of the Unified
Government of Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas, throughout the period of their
employment, and shall not attempt to circumvent the objectives of the BPU's employee
residency requirement.

All BPU employees shall have a period of twelve (12) months after employment begins to
establish and maintain a legal primary residence within the legally defined boundaries of
the Unified Government of Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas. On or before the last
day of the twelve (12) month period, the employee shall be required to complete a
"Certificate of Residency," to be filed with the Human Resources Division, indicating the
employee's address and any subsequent change of address, and acknowledging the BPU's
continuing residency requirement. Should the employee be found not to have established
or maintained a legal primary residence within the legally defined boundaries of the Unified
Government of Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas the employee shall be terminated
for failure to meet the conditions and qualifications for continued employment with the
BPU.

10















] VIL.Employees Addressing the Board Regarding Employment Related
Matters

A. BPU employees may attend public open meetings of the BPU Board of Directors
and may address the Board or during such meetings if the Board's Rules and Procedures
permit such comment, subject to the following limitations:

1. To be allowed to address the Board, a BPU employee must speak on a
matter of public concern.

2. Comments by a BPU employee on a matter of personal interest will not be
[ allowed.
3. A BPU employee will be allowed to address the Board of Directors on items

on the Board's agenda, as long as the employee's comments relate to a matter of
public concern, rather than personal interest.

4. If the General Manager determines that a BPU employee's remarks relate to
a matter of personal interest, rather than public concern, such remarks will not be
allowed.

B. Guidelines;

1. Matters of public concern are those that are of interest to the community,
whether for social, political, or other reasons.

2. In deciding whether a particular statement involves a matter of public
concern, the fundamental inquiry is whether the employee speaks as a citizen or as
an employee. The content, form and context of the speech, as well as the speaker's
motivation, must be considered.

3. Speech pertaining to internal personnel disputes, personal grievances,
internal policies or working conditions ordinarily is not of public concern. On the
other hand, speech that pertains to a public agency's discharging its governmental
responsibilities or that questions the propriety of governmental operations or the
integrity of governmental officials is a matter of public concern.

4, The term "working conditions" includes, but is not limited to, matters
relating to wages, salaries, hours of work, overtime, vacation, sick leave, injury
leave, holidays, retirement benefits, insurance benefits, wearing apparel, discipline,
termination, promotion, demotion and transfer.

5. Even though a statement by an employee addresses a matter that ordinarily

would be of personal interest, the statement may involve a matter of public concern,
depending upon the content, form and context of the statement.

15



C. The Board of Directors requests that employees address matters of personal interest
involving their employment with their supervisors or other management or the Human
Resources Division or through the grievance process, as appropriate, rather than through
oral or written communications with Board members. Under the BPU policy, authority
over personnel decisions is vested in the Human Resources Division and the General
Manager. The Board of Directors and its members are prohibited from in any manner
directing, supervising or requiring the appointment, promotion, transfer, assignment,
demotion, discipline, suspension, discharge or removal of any officers or employees.

D. This policy is intended to be a statement of the right of BPU employees to freedom

of speech. This policy shall be interpreted so as to protect an employee’s right to free
speech.

16







































Approval of Minutes
Regular Session 10-4-23
Agenda Item #V



REGULAR SESSION ~-WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Regular Session on Wednesday, October 4, 2023 at 6:00 PM. The following Board Members
were present: Rose Mulvany Henry, President; Thomas Groneman, Vice President; Robert L.
Milan, Secretary; Mary Gonzales, Jeff Bryant, and David Haley.

Also present: William Johnson, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Acting Chief
Counsel; Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer; Jeremy Ash,
Chief Operating Officer; Jerry Sullivan, Chief Information Officer; Maurice Moss, Executive
Director Corporate Compliance; Johnetta Hinson, Executive Director Customer Service;
Darrin McNew, Executive Director Electric Operations; Jerin Purtee, Executive Director
Electric Supply; Steve Nirschl, Director Water Processing; Dennis Dumovich, Director of
Human Resources; Patrice Townsend, Director Utility Services; Douglas Bowen, Director
Electric Production Operations & Maintenance; Steve Hargis, Supervisor Water Distribution
Meters; and Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager.

A video of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities and can be found on the
BPU website, www.bpu.com.

Ms. Mulvany Henry called the Board meeting to order at 6:01 PM. She welcomed all
that were listening to or viewing the meeting. She informed all that the meeting was being
recorded including video and audio. During the public comment section, those attending in
person, wishing to speak, should use the sign-up sheet at the entry and provide their name and
address. Public comments were limited to five minutes and should be addressed to the Board.
Members of the public who wished to speak to the Board using Zoom needed to use the Raise
Hand feature at the bottom of the application or window to signal that they wish to address the
board during the public comment section. Members of the public connected by phone only,
needed to press *9 to indicate they wished to address the Board in the public comment section.
No confidential information should be shared, including, account information. Staff would not
provide individual account information during an open meeting. As always, the public could
also email or call the BPU with any concerns. She informed that all participants were to act
respectfully to each other. Personal attacks or accusations would not be tolerated. All concerns
would be directed to the Board only, they would then determine staff involvement. If side
discussion was necessary, it was to be conducted outside of the Board room to avoid interfering
with presenters or other attendees. If any rules are breached during this meeting, the attendee
was subject to removal. Ms. Mulvany Henry introduced herself and the other Board Members
along with the General Manager, and Legal Counsel.

Roll call was taken and all Board Members were present.

Page 1 of 4



REGULAR SESSION —-WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS

CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item #3 — Approval of Acenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda by Ms. Gonzales, seconded by Mr. Bryant,

and unanimously carried.

Item #4 — Approval of Regular Session Minutes of September 20, 2023

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the Regular Session of September 20,

2023, by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Groneman, and unanimously carried.

Jtem #5— Public Comments

There were no visitors wishing to speak.

Item #6— General Manager / Staff Reports

1.

il

1il.

August 2023 Financials: Ms. Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief
Administrative Officer, presented the August 2023 Financials to the Board. (See
attached PowerPoint.)

Ms. Austin responded to questions and comments from the Board.

A motion was made to approve the August 2023 Financials as presented, by Mr.
Groneman, seconded by Mr. Milan, and unanimously carried.

My Meter Update: Mr. Jerry Sullivan, Chief Information Officer, and Robert Kamp, IT
Project Manager, provided the Board with an update and demonstration of MyMeter,
which will replace the current Customer Self Service portal. They explained that
MyMeter was created to improve the BPU customer experience by offering many new
and enhanced features and that notifications will be sent out and resources will be
available to assist customers with navigating the new program. MyMeter is expected to
rollout in December 2023. (See attached PowerPoint.)

Mr. Sullivan and Mr. Kamp responded to questions and comments from the Board.

Miscellaneous Comments: Mr. Johnson notified the Board that BPU would be
receiving an Award of Excellence, from the APPA, pertaining the BPU website and
social media efforts. The award would be presented at the APPA Customer Connection

Conference in November.
Page 2 of 4



REGULAR SESSION ~-WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Mr. Johnson also presented Ms. Patrice Townsend, Director of Utility Services, with a
Resolution of Appreciation Award, from the APPA, for her time served on the Smart
Energy Provider (SEP) program Review Panel (2018-2022). Ms. Townsend started as a
committee member in 2018. She was elected to Vice Chair of the executive committee
from 2020- 2021, then served as Chair in 2022.

Ms. Austin and Ms. Townsend gave the Board a brief update on the BPU
Weatherization Program. BPU had engaged with Habitat KC to perform the energy
audits and updates as part of our energy efficiency efforts. There are currently 60
homes that will get to utilize the program funds, each receiving a maximum of
$2,000.00. BPU was informed that the state of Kansas would not be applying for
additional federal weatherization funds.

Item #7 — Board Comments

Mr. Haley thanked staff for the financial update as well as the MyMeter program
presentation. He advised he would follow up with additional information as to why Kansas has
not pushed for additional weatherization funds.

Mr. Groneman stated he was pleased with the results of the monthly cash on hand results.
He also thanked Mr. Sullivan and Mr. Kamp for their presentation and looked forward to the
‘My Meter’ program.

Mr. Milan thanked staff for the informative presentations.

Mr. Bryant expressed his excitement for the MyMeter presentation and reiterated the
importance of community education so that everyone can utilize this new tool.

Ms. Gonzales thanked staff for their presentations. She congratulated Ms. Townsend on
her award and also thanked her for her community involvement.

Ms. Mulvany Henry echoed Ms. Gonzales in congratulating Ms. Townsend on her award
and community outreach. She thanked Mr. Sullivan and Mr. Kamp for their presentation and
looked forward to My Meter going live. She also thanked Ms. Austin and Mr. Townsend for the
weatherization update they provided. She gave the Board notice that she would not be available,
in-person, to attend the second meeting in November. She confirmed she could be in attendance
via Zoom.

Page 3 of 4



REGULAR SESSION —-WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2023
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item #8 — Adjourn

At 7:22 PM a motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Milan, seconded by Ms. Gonzales and
unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 4 of 4



































































































General Manager/Staff Reports
Agenda Item #VII



RESOLUTION NO. 5290

RESOLUTION BY THE KANSAS CITY BOARD OF UTILITIES AN
ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCY OF THE UNIFIED GOVERNMENT OF WYANDOTTE
COUNTY/ KANSAS CITY, KANSAS REVISING AND REPLACING THE
PERSONNEL CODE.

WHEREAS, the Board has previously adopted a Personnel Code; and

WHEREAS, after staff recommendations and the Elected Board discussion of said
policies the Elected Board wishes to make updates to said code; and

WHEREAS, the updated Personnel Code is attached hereto;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDAINED BY THE
KANSAS CITY BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES:

That the Kansas City Board of Public Utilities hereby replaces the previous Personnel
Code in its entirety and replaces them with the Policies attached hereto. This Code will be
effective October 18, 2023 except when an action or event occurred prior to this date then the
Personnel Code that was in effect at the time of the action shall apply.

ADOPTED BY THE KANSAS CITY BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES
THIS 18" day of October, 2023

Rose Mulvany Henry, Board President

Attest:

Robert Milan, Board Secretary

Approved as to form:



Table of Contents

LL00 OVETVIEW ..ottt ettt et ee et e e s ettt et ee e st es et s et ettt ee e ereneans 2
LLOT INETOAUCTION ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e et e e et e ee et rree e e et eaeen e 2
1.02 Welcome t0 BPU! L.ttt ene, 2
2U00 POLICY ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et et s ete et et en et et et e ettt e et etanns 3
2.01 General Manager AUHOTILY ........c.ocooviiiiiiie et ettt et ettt et et et et e er e st e es e e e eeeeeans 3
2.02 Establish Employment Policies, Practice and Procedures ..............cco.ocooeooieeeoceeeo oo 4
2.03 Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) ..........coioiiiiiiooe oo e e 5
204 RESIARTICY ..viuiiviiiiieieee ettt ettt ettt et et ettt e et et et ettt e et et e e en e s e s s e e e, 6
2.05 Collective Bargaining - RECOZNITION ...........coiiiiviiiiiiiit st 7
2,06 HOLAAYS ....cvviiiiiiriiie ettt ettt ettt e et et et eee e e e et et e e ee e s e e e e ereeans 9
2.07 Employees Addressing the Board Regarding Employment Related Matters .............oc.cooovevvcerernennn, 9

3.00 ReVISION HISIOTY .....cuiiiiiiiitiiiisiieieieetie ettt ettt ettt ettt e st et e aeeesee e et eeeeneseseaeeeeneeees 10






Personnel Code

| PA-160-002

Form No.: 094-1178-D (06-19)

without cause. With the exception of the General Manager's
contract, only the General Manager of the KCBPU has
authority to enter into employment agreements. Otherwise,
the KCBPU does not recognize or enter into unwritten
employment agreements. Accordingly, the KCBPU does not
recognize or enter into any ora!l or implied employment
agreements. This Personnel Code does not constitute an
employment agreement. This Personnel Code is not
intended to alter the employment-at-will relaticnship in
any way.

e Employee Relations

(@]

Good communication is essential to maintaining a
productive work atmosphere. Should a problem develop or
you have questions or ideas about procedures, policies, or
your own position, please discuss it with your supervisor.
Every effort should be made to resolve differences at this
level. If the issue cannot be resolved between you and vour
supervisor, it can be submitted to management, the Human
Resources Division and ultimately to the General Manager
or a designated representative. The General Manager's
actions are final. See the Employee Handbook for more
information.

e Discipline Program

(@]

KCBPU recognizes the need to maintain discipline,
establish and communicate reasonable rules of conduct,
and to consistently enforce these rules where necessary.
The purpose of maintaining discipline is to improve
employee performance and correct inappropriate
behavior. Disciplinary action should be applied to the
extent necessary to correct misconduct and to bring
employee performance back into conformance with
acceptable standards.

These disciplinary provisions in the Employee Handbook do
not represent an employment contract. Employment with the
KCBPU is at-will and at the discretion of the General Manager.
The Employee Handbook will provide additional provisions in
detail to be consistent with the Personnel Code and as
amended. The KCBPU has made no commitment for
employment for any specified duration. Either the KCBPU or
the employee may terminate the employment relationship at
any time.

¢ Management Responsibilities

(@]

Management is accountable for maintaining discipline and
enforcing the rules of the Employee Handbook. Disciplinary
matters should always be handled at the lowest possible level
of supervision, with appropriate review by the next higher

Page 2 of 9



Personnel Code

| PA-160-002

2.02 Establish
Employment
Policies, Practice
and Procedures:

2.03 Equal Employment

Opportunity (EEO):

Form No.: 094-1178-D (06-19)

level of management in accordance with the procedures
established in the Employee Handbook. Management is
defined as those employees deemed to be “Exempt” by the
Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and in a supervisory role.

o The Human Resources Division is accountable for
monitoring this Personnel Code and assuring consistent
application of the rules contained herein.

o Each supervisor is responsible for maintaining discipline
and enforcement of rules in their functional area,
department or division.

o Supervisors shall be responsible not only for their own
safety but also for the safe work performance of employees
under their supervision. Failure by a supervisor to enforce
this policy or other KCBPU safety requirements may result
in disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

o Any supervisor observing a rule violation may recommend
disciplinary action in accordance with the Employee
Handbook if, in their judgment, the situation warrants such
action. Any supervisor has the authority to suspend
employees in their line of their authority pending an
investigation in cases involving serious offenses, but should
attempt to seek guidance from the Human Resources
Division.

o Only the General Manager has the authority to discharge an
employee.

The General Manager is directed to adopt an Employee Handbook and amend as
needed, that is consistent with this Personnel Code and governs the day to day
activities of employment at the KCBPU. The Employee Handbook will provide
additional provisions in detail to be consistent with the Personnel Code as
amended.

The KCBPU is committed to providing equal employment opportunity for
all persons regardless of race, color, sex (including pregnancy, gender
identity, and sexual orientation), religion, national origin or ancestry,
genetics, disability (physical or mental), marital status, age or military or
veteran status and any other legally protected status. Equal opportunity
extends to all aspects of the employment relationship, including hiring,
transfers, promotions, training, terminations, compensation, benefits, and
other terms and conditions of employment.

KCBPU shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local equal
opportunity laws and strive to keep the workplace free from all forms of
illegal discrimination and harassment.

¢ I[ndividual with Disabilities

Page 3 of 9



Personnel Code

| PA-160-002

Form No.:

o}

The KCBPU shall comply with federal, state and local laws
concerning the employment of individuals with disabilities.
If you believe you have a disability that may require
accommodation in order to perform the essential functions
of your job, you should contact the Human Resources
Division. Additionally, if you believe that you have been
discriminated against on the basis of your disability, you
should contact the Human Resources Division immediately.

e Harassment/Discrimination

o}

094-1178-D (06-19)

Itis the intent of the KCBPU that all employees, vendors,
customers and all other persons with whom KCBPU
employees may come into contact as part of their
employment with KCBPU enjoy a work environment free
from all forms of discrimination, including illegal
harassment. Harassment based on race, color, sex
(including sexual harassment, pregnancy, gender identity,
and sexual orientation), religion, national origin or
ancestry, genetics, disability (mental or physical),
citizenship status, marital status, age, or military or veteran
status and any other legally protected status is a violation
of the KCBPU's policy on Equal Employment Opportunity.
You are expected to deal fairly and honestly with other
employees, vendors, customers and all other persons with
whom you come in contact as a KCBPU employee to ensure
a work environment free of intimidation and harassment.
Abuse of the dignity of anyone through ethnic, racist, sexist
slurs, or through other derogatory or objectionable
conduct is offensive employee behavior and may be subject
to disciplinary action.

Sexual harassment is a specific form of harassment that
undermines the integrity of the employment relationship. It
will not be tolerated. Unwelcome sexual advances, requests
for sexual favors, unwelcome sexual overtures and/or
conduct and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual
nature will not be tolerated and such activity should be
reported to the Human Resources Division.

Any person who feels that he or she has experienced or
observed harassment or has been discriminated against
due to race, color, sex (including sexual harassment,
pregnancy, gender identity, and sexual orientation),
religion, national origin or ancestry, genetics, disability
(mental or physical), citizenship status, marital status, age
or military or veteran status and any other legally
protected status should immediately report such incidents
to his/her supervisor, the Human Resources Division, or to
the General Manager without fear of reprisal.

Page 4 of 9



Personnel Code

| PA-160-002

2.04 Residency:

Form No.: 094-1178-D (06-19)

o The KCBPU will make every effort to maintain
confidentiality to the extent possible in conducting a
thorough and effective investigation. An investigation will
be made and appropriate action taken to address the
investigative findings.

o The KCBPU strictly prohibits retaliation against an
individual for making a complaint or notifying the KCBPU
of conduct prohibited by this policy, testifying as a witness
at a hearing or otherwise assisting in an investigation of
any complaint made pursuant to this policy.

o Wealso realize that intentional false accusations or
harassment can have serious effects on innocent
employees. Thus, false accusations may also result in
disciplinary action.

The KCBPU board declares that all employees must establish and
maintain their legal primary residence within the legal boundaries
of the Unified Government of Wyandotte County/Kansas City,
Kansas. The Board's objectives in adopting a residency
requirement are to promote the interest and loyalty of KCBPU
employees within the KCBPU's service area, to improve the
relations between KCBPU employees and the residents of the
Unified Government and the Unified Government Board of
Commissioners, to enhance the quality of KCBPU's employees'
performance by encouraging greater personal knowledge of the
KCBPU's service area and by fostering a greater personal
connection between KCBPU employees and the KCBPU in terms of
the KCBPU's growth, rates and competitive edge, to diminish
absenteeism and tardiness, to promote readily trained personnel
in emergency situations, to help the general economic conditions
of the local economy by increasing local spending of employees’
wages and salaries, to help diminish the population decline of the
county, and to help increase the local tax base while adding to the
number of KCBPU customers.

Pursuant to the KCBPU's residency requirement, all KCBPU
employees shall establish and maintain their legal primary
residence within the legally defined boundaries of the Unified
Government of Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas,
throughout the period of their employment, and shall not attempt
to circumvent the objectives of the KCBPU's employee residency
requirement.

All KCBPU employees shall have a period of twelve (12) months
after employment begins to establish and maintain a legal primary
residence within the legally defined boundaries of the Unified
Government of Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas. On or
before the last day of the twelve (12) month period, the employee

Page 5 of 9



Personnel Code

| PA-160-002

2.05 Collective
Bargaining -
Recognition:

Form No.: 094-1178-D (06-19)

shall be required to complete a "Certificate of Residency," to be
filed with the Human Resources Division, indicating the
employee's address and any subsequent change of address, and
acknowledging the KCBPU's continuing residency requirement.
Should the employee be found not to have established or
maintained a legal primary residence within the legally defined
boundaries of the Unified Government of Wyandotte
County/Kansas City, Kansas the employee shall be terminated for
failure to meet the conditions and qualifications for continued
employment with the KCBPU.

Legal and primary residence is defined as a KCBPU employee's
domicile, which is the residence that is intended to be permanent
rather than temporary and which is the place that is permitted
and authorized as a residential dwelling by the laws and
ordinances of the State of Kansas and the Unified Government of
Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas. The legal and primary
residence shall be the residence where the employee spends the
majority of his/her non-work hours. Tests for determining a
KCBPU employee's legal primary residence include, but are not
limited to the residential address indicated on an employee's
driver's license, automobile registration, voter's registration, bank
accounts, credit cards and legal documents; the address provided
for the purpose of school enrollment for children living with the
KCBPU employee; the address provided on the Certificate of
Residency filed with the KCBPU's Human Resources Division; and
any other credible evidence indicating the employee's intent to
reside at a permanent and primary residence.

Physical Bargaining Unit
o The Kansas City Board of Public Utilities hereby recognizes the
Local Union 53, International Brotherhood of Electrical
Workers as the bargaining representative for the physical
employees employed within the divisions, except that the
term "Employee” shall exclude professional, clerical,
confidential employees, guards and supervisors as defined
in the National Labor Relations Act, as amended, employed
within said section.
= International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers
Local 53
1100 East Admiral Boulevard
Kansas City, Missouri 64106
Clerical Bargaining Unit
o The Kansas City Board of Public Utilities hereby recognizes
the Local Union 53-4, International Brotherhood of
Electrical Workers as the bargaining representative for the
clerical employees employed within the Divisions, except

Page 6 of 9



Personnel Code

| PA-160-002

2.06 Holidays:

Form No.: 094-1178-D (06-19)

that the term "Employee" shall exclude managerial,
confidential employees, guards and supervisors as defined
in the National Labor Relations Act, as amended, employed
within said Divisions.

International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers 53-4
1100 East Admiral Boulevard

Kansas City, Missouri 64106

¢ Employee Categories

o]

Regular full-time employees: Employees working and
scheduled to work at least a 30-hour workweek on an
annual basis are eligible for KCBPU benefits.

Exempt employees: Employees who are exempt from the
overtime pay provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act
(FLSA) and accordingly need not receive additional
compensation or compensatory time for working more
than 40 hours in a workweek. Exempt employees are
generally executive, administrative, professional, or sales
personnel and work at least 40 hours per week.
Non-exempt employees: Employees who are covered by
the overtime provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act
(FLSA) are, therefore, eligible for overtime payment at 1 %
times their hourly rate.

e Bargaining Units and Non-Bargaining Employees

o]

The KCBPU recognizes that certain classes and categories
of employees are not eligible for membership in any of the
bargaining units. Additionally, bargaining unit employees
may elect not to be represented by such bargaining units.
All KCBPU employees are covered by the policies and
procedures outlined in the Employee Handbook. In the
event that an employee is covered by a recognized
collective bargaining agreement in effect, and the
provisions of that collective bargaining agreement conflict
with the Employee Handbook, then the collective
bargaining agreement shall control.

Holidays recognized by the KCBPU shall be:

New Year's Day

Martin Luther King's Birthday
Good Friday

Memorial Day

Juneteenth

Independence Day

Labor Day

Thanksgiving Day

Friday after Thanksgiving

Page 7 of 9



Personnel Code

| PA-160-002

Christmas Day

The General Manager is directed to set the actual date of the holidays on
an annual basis and to provide these dates to all personnel.

2.07 Employees e KCBPU employees may attend public open meetings of the KCBPU
Addressing the Board of Directors and may address the Board or during such
Board Regarding meetings if the Board's Rules and Procedures permit such
Employment comment, subject to the following limitations:

Related Matters: o To be allowed to address the Board, a KCBPU employee

must speak on a matter of public concern.

o Comments by a KCBPU employee on a matter of personal
interest will not be allowed.

o AKCBPU employee will be allowed to address the Board of
Directors on items on the Board's agenda, as long as the
employee's comments relate to a matter of public concern,
rather than personal interest.

o Ifthe General Manager determines that a KCBPU

employee's remarks relate to a matter of personal interest,
rather than public concern, such remarks will not be
allowed.

e (Guidelines:

e}

Form No.: 094-1178-D (06-19)

Matters of public concern are those that are of interest to
the community, whether for social, political, or other
reasons.

In deciding whether a particular statement involves a
matter of public concern, the fundamental inquiry is
whether the employee speaks as a citizen or as an
employee. The content, form and context of the speech, as
well as the speaker's motivation, must be considered.
Speech pertaining to internal personnel disputes, personal
grievances, internal policies or working conditions
ordinarily is not of public concern. On the other hand,
speech that pertains to a public agency's discharging its
governmental responsibilities or that questions the
propriety of governmental operations or the integrity of
governmental officials is a matter of public concern.

The term "working conditions” includes, but is not limited
to, matters relating to wages, salaries, hours of work,
overtime, vacation, sick leave, injury leave, holidays,
retirement benefits, insurance benefits, wearing apparel,
discipline, termination, promotion, demotion and transfer.
Even though a statement by an employee addresses a
matter that ordinarily would be of personal interest, the
statement may involve a matter of public concern,

Page 8 of 9



Personnel Code

| PA-160-002

Form No.:

depending upon the content, form and context of the

statement.,
The Board of Directors requests that employees address matters
of personal interest involving their employment with their
supervisors or other management or the Human Resources
Division or through the grievance process, as appropriate, rather
than through oral or written communications with Board
members. Under the KCBPU policy, authority over personnel
decisions is vested in the Human Resources Division and the
General Manager. The Board of Directors and its members are
prohibited from in any manner directing, supervising or requiring
the appointment, promotion, transfer, assignment, demotion,
discipline, suspension, discharge or removal of any officers or
employees.
This policy is intended to be a statement of the right of KCBPU
employees to freedom of speech. This policy shall be interpreted
so as to protect an employee’s right to free speech.

3.00 REVISION HISTORY

. 1Board Approval
Prior Version# | , - [Required
[Effective Date] Owner [Author] |Approver o ‘
- ‘ - . , S ¥ Yes
Name
Title
Current VérSiéh # . ‘ .
[Effective Date] Owner [Author] Approver
Name |Dennis Dumovich William Johnson
XX/XX/2023 , ‘
Title  |Director Human Resources General Manager

Description of .
Changes:

Personnel Code Book moved into Personnel Code Policy

Owner ;
Signature/Date

General Manager
Signature/Date

094-1178-D (06-19)

Page 9 of 9






